
 

 

 

Emma Alexander 
Executive Director 
Commissioning, 
Communities and Policy  
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38394 
Direct Dial 01629 538394 
Ask for Juliette Normington 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - Health 
 
 
 

Friday, 15 November 2019 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - 
Health to be held at 2.00 pm on Monday, 25 November 2019 in the 
Council Chamber, County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, the agenda for which 
is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Emma Alexander 
Executive Director 
Commissioning, Communities and Policy  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Improvement and 
Scrutiny Committee – Health held on 16 September 2019 
 

4.   Public Questions (30 minutes maximum in total) (Pages 5 - 6) 
 
(Questions may be submitted to be answered by the Scrutiny Committee, 
or Council officers who are attending the meeting as witnesses, on any 
item that is within the scope of the Committee. Please see the procedure 
for the submission of questions attached.) 
 

5.   Public Health Update - Oral Health of 5 Year Olds (Pages 7 - 30) 
 

6.   Public Health Update - Improving Healthy Life Expectancy (Pages 31 - 44) 
 

7.   Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Review (Pages 45 - 48) 
 

8.   Derbyshire Healthwatch Carers Report (Pages 49 - 82) 
 

9.   Exclusion of the Public  
 

PART II - EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
10.   Minutes (Pages 83 - 84) 

 
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Improvement and 
Scrutiny Committee – Health held on 16 September 2019 
 

 



PUBLIC 

 
 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the IMPROVEMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
– HEALTH held at County Hall, Matlock on 16 September 2019. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor D Taylor (Chairman) 
 
Councillors D Allen, R Ashton, S Bambrick, S Burfoot, R Flatley, L Grooby, G 
Musson, I Ratcliffe (substitute). 
 
Also in attendance were: Tracey Allen, Kate Brown, William Jones, Vikki Taylor 
and Sean Thornton from Derby and Derbyshire CCG. 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors S Blank and A 
Stevenson. 
 
23/19  MINUTES RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Health held on 15 July 2019 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
24/19  PUBLIC QUESTIONS  Question from Keith Venables to the 
CCG.  Mr Venables was unable to attend the meeting so the Chairman read the 
question and answer to the meeting: 
 

Derbyshire Health Scrutiny exists to ensure that the policies and plans of 
the Derbyshire CCG are coherent and financially well planned.  As a member 
of the electorate, I would like to request that, on my behalf, and behalf of other 
members of the public, you scrutinise the CCG/DCHS decision to close a ward 
in Ilkeston Community Hospital without putting proper Care at Home in place 
first.  The evidence cited to do this is academically flimsy and admitted by 
employees of the CCG as only anecdotal.   

 
The CCG responded as follows: 
 
The project to review the discharge pathway has been undertaken in 

partnership with partners in the Derbyshire Health and Care system.  The 
papers presented to the committee today and at its meeting in July outline the 
rationale for the project, which follows similar schemes which have been 
successfully implemented in other parts of Derbyshire.  These other projects 
were also the subject of scrutiny committee review at that time.  

 
The project in Erewash sees a net gain in the provision of bedded care in 

the area and ensures that patients receive the optimum pathway of onward care 
when they are ready for discharge from an acute hospital.  The care model is 
fully supported by clinicians and managers and there is an academic and local 
evidence base for the change.  The implementation will be subject to detailed 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

quality assurance processes during the course of the next six months and 
beyond.  The Pathway 2 beds are now in place and available at Ladycross Care 
Home and Pathway 1 care will be increased gradually as the project is 
implemented and the number of home discharges increases over time. 

 
 Councillor Bambrick stated he was very disappointed that there 

was no public question and answer session to be held during the meeting.  This 
was supported by Councillor Ratcliffe who referred the Committee to Appendix 
A in the clinical pathways report to be presented later in the meeting.  
 

RESOLVED that (1) the answer to Mr Venables’ question be accepted 
by the Committee; and 

 
 (2) the Chairman informed members that the Committee could not 

accept questions that were not for the Committee to answer.  
 
25/19  HEALTHWATCH DERBYSHIRE  This item was deferred to the 
next meeting. 
 
26/19  RE-DESIGN OF CLINICAL PATHWAYS – EREWASH  Kate 
Brown of the CCG summarised a report that went to the CCG Governing Body 
looking for their agreement with the recommendations made following a period 
of engagement on the re-design of clinical pathways to support hospital 
discharge in Erewash.  
 

Identified with the report were the main themes raised, details of the 
CCG’s response and the methodology used.  It went on to detail the proposed 
changes provided by pathways 1,2 and 3, provided information about the 
system’s readiness to mobilise the pathway changes and identified the potential 
operational risks and mitigations.  
 
 In summary, it was found that the care needed was predominantly around 
social need and not necessarily medical needs: a pattern that was being seen 
across north Derbyshire.  Concerns mainly centred around how the changes 
were going to be deliveredand the possible failure to implement the changes in 
response to need. 
  
 A number of questions were put by the Committee including the 
engagement process, staffing commitment and utilisation of vacant wards.  
Members were concerned about the effects of the changes and the impact on 
people in Derbyshire, level of care, rural issues and 24-hour cover.  The 
success of the model hinged on whether the elements of the system were 
working effectively and whether demand profiling for bedded care was accurate. 
 
 RESOLVED that (1) more detailed information was needed by the 
Committee to enable an in-depth view; and 
 

Page 2



 

 
 

 (2) for the CCG to continue to monitor the process and report back to the 
Scrutiny Committee in six months. 
 
27/19  JOINED UP CARE DERBYSHIRE  Vikki Taylor, STP Director for 
Joined Up Care Derbyshire presented a draft of Joined Up Care in Derbyshire, 
5-year strategy delivery plan to the Autumn of 2023/24.  
 
 The plan would be outcomes driven, focussed on making improvement 
in wider determinants of health such as housing, education and air pollution 
management, stronger focus on addressing inequalities and population health 
management, and was informed and developed through strong engagement 
with people, patients, staff and wider stakeholders. 
 
 The report went on to explain their Mission and Vision and the case for 
change.  Their aim was to be an integrated Care System which was built around 
care close to home, where hospital beds were only used where somebody 
cannot be cared for safely in their own environment. 
 
 Over the next six months, it was expected to: 
 

 agree the 5-year System Transformation Strategy; 

 be able to evidence the impact of the transformational change 
programmes; 

 be clear on the role of the PCNs and how they worked with other 
community providers; 

 continue to build resilience and services provided at Place Alliance level; 

 embed population health management at Place Alliance and PCN level; 

 describe how many Integrated Community Providers Derbyshire would 
have and what benefits they would offer communities; 

 implement a system-wide Board level OD programme to help 
organisations increasingly work in the system space; and 

 develop a shared system financial plan for future years.  
 
 A number of questions were put by the Committee including queries 
about life expectancy, financial challenges, delivery and engagement.  In 
particular, Members questioned the ability to deliver the plan, given that the 
CCG was undergoing financial recovery and the other financial pressures the 
care system was subject to. 
 
 RESOLVED – to note the report. 
 
28/19  BELPER HEALTH SERVICES  William Jones, Chief Operating 
Officer of the DHCS gave an outline of the planning of Joined Up Care in Belper, 
which ultimately aimed to ensure the town’s services were fit for purpose, for 
people needing support at the time as well as in the future. 
 

Page 3



 

 
 

Detailed discussions about proposals and subsequent plans made for 
Belper’s health services had taken place through NHS public governing body 
and trust board meetings, with NHS staff, clinicians and local community groups 
fully involved throughout.  All feedback was considered by the local NHS and 
independently analysed by Healthwatch Derbyshire.  This Committee had also 
been routinely updated throughout.  
 
 RESOLVED – to hear the update of the Trust in the exempt part of the 
meeting due to the commercial sensitivity of the information. 
 
29/10  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  RESOLVED to exclude the 
Public from the meeting during the consideration of the remaining items on the 
agenda to avoid the disclosure of exempt information detailed in the following 
summary of proceedings: 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC HAD 
BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 

 
  1. Presentation on the proposals for Belper Health Services (contains 
sensitive information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that information)). 
 

Page 4



Procedure for Public Questions at Improvement and Scrutiny 
 Committee meetings 

 
Members of the public who are on the Derbyshire County Council register of 
electors, or are Derbyshire County Council tax payers or non-domestic tax 
payers, may ask questions of the Improvement and Scrutiny Committees, or 
witnesses who are attending the meeting of the Committee. The maximum 
period of time for questions by the public at a Committee meeting shall be 30 
minutes in total.  
 
Order of Questions 
  
Questions will be asked in the order they were received in accordance with the 
Notice of Questions requirements, except that the Chairman may group 
together similar questions.  
 
Notice of Questions  
 
A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it in 
writing or by email to the Director of Legal Services no later than 12 noon three 
working days before the Committee meeting (i.e. 12 noon on a Wednesday 
when the Committee meets on the following Monday). The notice must give 
the name and address of the questioner and the name of the person to whom 
the question is to be put.  
 
Questions may be emailed to democratic.services@derbyshire.gov.uk  
 
Number of Questions  
 
At any one meeting no person may submit more than one question, and no 
more than one such question may be asked on behalf of one organisation 
about a single topic.  
 
Scope of Questions  
 
The Director of Legal Services may reject a question if it:  
 

• Exceeds 200 words in length;  
 

• is not about a matter for which the Committee has a responsibility, or 
does not affect Derbyshire;  

 
• is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;  

 
• is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting 

of the Committee in the past six months; or  
 

• requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 
Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:democratic.services@derbyshire.gov.uk


Submitting Questions at the Meeting  
 
Questions received by the deadline (see Notice of Question section above) 
will be shared with the respondent with the request for a written response to be 
provided by 5 pm on the last working day before the meeting (i.e. 5 pm on 
Friday before the meeting on Monday). A schedule of questions and 
responses will be produced and made available 30 minutes prior to the 
meeting (from Democratic Services Officers in the meeting room).  
 
It will not be necessary for the questions and responses to be read out at the 
meeting, however, the Chairman will refer to the questions and responses and 
invite each questioner to put forward a supplementary question.  
 
Supplementary Question 
  
Anyone who has put a question to the meeting may also put one 
supplementary question without notice to the person who has replied to his/her 
original question. A supplementary question must arise directly out of the 
original question or the reply. The Chairman may reject a supplementary 
question on any of the grounds detailed in the Scope of Questions section 
above.  
 
Written Answers 
  
The time allocated for questions by the public at each meeting will be 30 
minutes. This period may be extended at the discretion of the Chairman. Any 
questions not answered at the end of the time allocated for questions by the 
public will be answered in writing. Any question that cannot be dealt with 
during public question time because of the non-attendance of the person to 
whom it was to be put, will be dealt with by a written answer. 

Page 6



Oral Health in Derbyshire:  

With a focus on the Oral Health Survey of 

five-year-old children (2017)

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



Key terminology 
How is oral health measured? 

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/tooth-decay/

DMFT is the 

terminology used in 

national indicators. 

We will refer to it as   

Decay 

Experienced
and

Decay 

Severity 

Decay

Tooth decay can occur when 

acid is produced from plaque 

which builds up on teeth

Missing 

If the tooth is so badly 

damaged that it can’t be 

restored – it is removed

Filled

Fillings are used to repair a 

hole in a tooth caused by 

decay 

Teeth 

Usually referred to as the 

number of teeth. Children have 

20 milk teeth, adults have 32.

P
age 8

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/tooth-decay/


Oral Health Survey of five-year-old children (2017) 

Delivered by Public Health England (PHE) National Dental 

Epidemiology Programme (NDEP)

4th oral health survey of 5 year olds. However, changed to positive consent in 

2012 so only have comparable data from 2012, 2015 and 2017. 

wide variation at both regional and local authority level for both 

prevalence and severity of dental decay

23.7% of 5 year old children in England had experienced decay

The last 3 surveys demonstrate a reduction in the number of 

children experiencing decay in one or more teeth

National findings:P
age 9



Decay 

experienced 

20%

England 23%

Mean 

decay

0.64

England 

0.78

Derbyshire had a significantly lower percentage of 

children experiencing decay (prevalence) compared to 

England (0-5 years, 2017)

Derbyshire had significantly 

lower decay in the number of 

children’s teeth (severity) 

compared to England (0-5 years, 2017)

What’s happening in Derbyshire? 

1 in 5 children  

experienced decay 

P
age 10



Decay of the incisors can indicate long term use of bottle feeding 

with drinks containing sugar. 

Derbyshire had a significantly lower percentage compared to 

the average for England (5%)

Substantial plaque can indicate poor oral hygiene and may highlight 

the need for support with tooth brushing.

Derbyshire had a significantly lower percentage compared to 

the average for England (1.5%)

Dental sepsis at this age is generally caused by dental decay and 

was measured by the presence of a dental abscess or sinus. 

Derbyshire had a similar percentage compared to the average 

for England (1.1%) 

What’s happening in Derbyshire?

0.6%   
in Derbyshire   

had dental  

sepsis

Dental Sepsis

3%
in Derbyshire  

had incisor  

decay

Incisor Decay 

0.6%
in Derbyshire   

had substantial  

plaque

Substantial Plaque 

P
age 11



Where has the most decay compared  

to the average for Derbyshire (districts)? 

Decay Severity (mean)

Bolsover had a significantly higher percentage 

of decay compared to Derbyshire (20.4%)

Bolsover had a significantly higher severity 

of decay compared to Derbyshire (0.64) 

Significantly better Similar Significantly worse

Decay Experienced (Prevalence %) 

High 

Peak

25.2%

Derbyshire 

Dales

9.8%

South 

Derbyshire

12.3%

North 

East

14.6%
Chesterfield

24.0%

Bolsover

34.8%

Amber Valley 

14.9%

Erewash

24.6%

High 

Peak

0.62 

Derbyshire 

Dales

0.38

South 

Derbyshire

0.35

North 

East

0.62 Chesterfield

0.92

Bolsover

1.02

Amber Valley 

0.44

Erewash

0.75

P
age 12



Which Electoral Division has the most 

decay compared  to the average for 

Derbyshire? 

Decay Severity (Mean)

Significantly worse:

 Breaston

 Buxton North & 

East

 Clay Cross South

 South Normanton 

& Pinxton

Significantly better:

 Dronfield East

Significantly better:

Bakewell

Clay Cross North

Dronfield West & 

Walton

 Etwall & Repton

Glossop & 

Charlesworth

Greater Heanor

Heanor Central

Horsley

Matlock

Sawley

Sutton

Swadlincote Central

Swadlincote South 

Significantly better Similar Significantly worse

Decay Experienced  (Prevalence %) 

Suppressed 

P
age 13



Dental health queries:

Where needs support with 

tooth brushing?
Where had high 

levels of long term 

bottle feeding of 

sugary drinks (dental 

decay affecting incisors)?

Districts had similar 

percentages of 

children with dental 

decay affecting 

incisors

Districts had similar 

percentages of 

children with 

substantial levels of 

plaque.

However, Bolsover 

had a significantly 

higher prevalence 

and severity of 

decay. 

P
age 14



Do deprived children experience 

more dental decay?
The English Indices of Deprivation (2015), also known as IMD can 

be used to measure the presence of deprivation. It provides a score 

based on a range of domains. Source: Gov.uk

Most deprived Least deprived

20%

32%

13%

6%
4%

3%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Most deprived Least deprived

No significant 

difference for 

dental sepsis 

No significant 

difference for 

substantial 

plaque  

No significant 

difference for 

dental decay 

of incisors 
IMD Quintile (weighted) 

IMD Quintile (weighted) 

Most deprived area 

had a significantly  
higher prevalence of decay 

compared to the average for Derbyshire

(weighted)

Most deprived area 

had a significantly

D
e
c
a

y
 S

e
v
e

ri
ty

 (
m

e
a

n
)

D
e

c
a

y
 P

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 (
%

)

higher severity of decay 
compared to the average for Derbyshire

(weighted)

0.64

0.97

0.87

0.58

0.54

0.31

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

P
age 15

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/465791/English_Indices_of_Deprivation_2015_-_Statistical_Release.pdf


Lower compared to England, which 

recorded 40,187 admissions 
(325 per 100,000, 2015/16 – 17/18 ) 

In Derbyshire 134 children aged 0 –

5 years were admitted to hospital for 

an extraction due to decay 
(89 per 100,000, 2015/16 – 17/18)

A local look:

High Peak (219.5 per 100,000)

and North East Derbyshire 

(169.9 per 100,000) had a 

significantly higher rate of 

hospital admissions compared 

to Derbyshire 

Bolsover (156.5 per 100,000),

Derbyshire Dales: (131.2 per 

100,000) and Chesterfield (88.2 

per 100,000) were similar. 

Rates were suppressed for 

Amber Valley, Erewash, South 

Derbyshire: (<6 per year) 

Admissions may involve a 

general anaesthetic that can 

have negative side effects

It is costly for the NHS

The average cost of a tooth 

extraction in hospital for a child 

aged 5 and under is £836    
(PHE England)

It often results in lost days 
at school and work  

It is almost entirely 

preventable 

Source: Fingertips

P
age 16



How many 5 year olds were seen in 

Derbyshire by a dentist in 2017? 

4%

25%

40%

46%

55%

61%

66%
63%

66% 66% 66%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 s

e
e
n

Age (years)

Percentage of children seen by a dentist in Derbyshire  
(June 16 – 17)

Source: NHS digital 

It is best if children visit the 

dentist as soon as milk 

(baby) teeth start to 

appear. 

61%
seen

In Derbyshire from June 2016/17, 61% of children aged 5 years old 

were seen by a dentist. This was higher than the average for 

England (58.2%) 

That’s 5231 5-year-olds in Derbyshire seen by a dentist. 

P
age 17



Geography Dental

Services

Accepting 

children

Derbyshire 87 26

Amber Valley 11 2

Bolsover 6 2

Chesterfield 17 7

Derby 36 11

Derbyshire Dales 12 3

Erewash 10 4

High Peak 15 3

North East 9 4

South Derbyshire 7 1

Image source: Shape Atlas 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived 

DSe

Multiple Dental 

Services

Dental 

Service

• The green circles represent 

dental services. 

• The purple demonstrates the 

IMD quintile for that area. 

Source: NHS choices & Shape Atlas      

How many dental services 

are there in Derbyshire? 

123 dental services in 

Derbyshire (including 

Derby City)

36 accepting children as 

new NHS patients 

Where are the dental services? 

Derbyshire  

This map explained:

• The dotted orange line represents a 10km 

buffer around Derbyshire. This is to 

highlight if people may be accessing 

services just over the border. 

P
age 18



Higher than the England average (38.1%)

What are the barriers preventing parents / carers taking their 

child to the dentist? 

Are there fewer dental services in deprived areas? 

Can people easily travel to dental services?  

Image source: Shape Atlas 

43.3% of 0 – 4 year olds attended 

the dentist (2016/17 – 2017/18)

43.3%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

Derbyshire

Population within 30 

minutes: 791966 (100%)

Travel time: car 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Population within 30 

minutes: 763,587 (96%) 

Population outside of 30 

minutes: 28,379 (4%) 

Travel time: public transport Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

P
age 19



Amber Valley  
37.7% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist. 

Lower compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

Population within 30 

minutes: 125,898 (100%) 

Travel time: Car 

Population within 30 

minutes: 120,315 (96%)

Population outside of 30 

minutes: 5,583 (4%)

Travel time: Public Transport Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England 

–wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 
Image source: Shape Atlas 

37.7%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

P
age 20



Bolsover  

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

42.4% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist. 

Lower compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

42.4%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Population within 30 

minutes: 79,098 (100%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 79,098 (100%)

Travel time: car 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation (IMD 

2015) 

Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

P
age 21



Chesterfield   
50.8% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist

Higher compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation (IMD 

2015) 

Population within 30 

minutes: 104,579 (100%)

Travel time : public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 104,579 (100%)

Travel time: car 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

50.8%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

P
age 22



Derbyshire Dales  
43.8%
Attended 
(0-4 yrs)

43.8% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist 

Higher compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

Population within 30 

minutes: 58,059 (81%)

Population outside of 30 

minutes: 13,790 (19%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 71,849 (100%)

Travel time: car 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation (IMD 

2015) 

Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

P
age 23



Erewash

42.6% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist

Lower compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

42.6%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

Population within 30 

minutes: 115,314 (100%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 115,314 (100%)

Travel time: car Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

P
age 24



High Peak  
36.4% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist 

Lower compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

36.4%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

Population within 30 

minutes: 92, 063 (100%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 92,063 (100%)

Travel time: car Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

P
age 25



North East Derbyshire  

48.4% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist 

Higher compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

Population within 30 

minutes: 100,780 (100%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 100,780 (100%)

Travel time: car Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

48.4%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

P
age 26



South Derbyshire  

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

44.8% of 0-4 year olds attended the dentist 

Higher compared to the Derbyshire average (2016/17 – 2017/18) 

44.8%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

Population within 30 

minutes: 94,899 (93%)

Population outside of 30 

minutes: 7,486 (7%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 102, 385 (100%)

Travel time: car 
Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England –

wide Index of 

Multiple 

Deprivation (IMD 

2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

P
age 27



Derby  

Population within 30 

minutes: 257,034 (100%)

Travel time: public transport 

Population within 30 

minutes: 257,034 (100%)

Travel time: car Deprivation: IMD (2015) 

5  Most deprived

4

3

2

1  Least deprived

The England 

–wide Index 

of Multiple 

Deprivation 

(IMD 2015) 

Image source: Shape Atlas 

Travel minutes DSe Multiple Dental ServicesDental ServiceKey: The dotted orange line represents a 10km buffer

38.6% of 0-4 year olds attended 

the dentist (2016/17 – 2017/18)

38.6%
Attended 

(0-4 yrs)

P
age 28



Take home messages: 

Children aged 5 in Derbyshire (who took part in the survey) had fewer 

Decayed, Missing or Filled Teeth compared to England. 

Bolsover and some electoral wards have increased levels of decay 

compared to the average for Derbyshire. These areas may benefit closer 

scrutiny and a potential intervention about tooth brushing habits. 

More families need to be encouraged to take their children to the 

dentist as soon as teeth start to appear .

The areas with the most deprivation had significantly higher levels of 

decay prevalence and severity compared to the average for Derbyshire. 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Improving Healthy Life Expectancy:

A life course approach to prevention

Dean Wallace

Director of Public Health

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



P
age 32



5 – 19 Years  
40 - 59

60 – 69 

70+

20 – 39 Years  

0 – 5 Years  

Death

Population health 

across the life 

course 

Pre-conception

P
age 33



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   Benefit term 

Strength 

of 

evidence

Smoking in Pregnancy

Identify local smoke free 

pregnancy champions

Training midwifery health care 

professions on very brief advice

Increase CO monitoring and 

referrals to stop smoking 

support (LLBD/Live Well)

Implement a smoking in 

pregnancy action plan

The most significant modifiable risk factor 

associated with antenatal and prenatal outcomes. 

Smoking in pregnancy increases the risk of 

miscarriage, still birth, low birth rate, preterm birth 

and Sudden Infant Death Syndrome. 

Short, Medium 

and Long

Initial health 

benefits and ROI

seen within 12 

months, medium 

and longer term 

impacts more 

significant.

Strong

MaternalObesity 

Training midwifery health care 

professions on very brief advice

There is  increased risk of infertility as well as 

complications during pregnancy and birth including: 

impaired glucose tolerance/gestational diabetes, 

miscarriage, pre-eclampsia, thromboembolism and 

maternal death.  Babies born to obese women have 

a higher risk of foetal death, stillbirth, congenital 

abnormality, shoulder dystocia, macrosomia and 

subsequent obesity.

Short, Medium 

and Long

- See above

Weak to 

Average, due 

to limited 

evidence on 

effective 

interventions

Alcohol and Pregnancy

Support those planning for 

pregnancyand newly pregnant 

women  to cease alcohol use to 

prevent Foetal alcohol 

spectrum disorder

Alcoholcan damage cells in baby’s brain, spinal cord 

and other parts of their body. Itcan result in loss of 

the pregnancy. Babies that survive may be left with 

lifelong problems including 

•Cerebral Palsy

•learning difficulties– such as problems 

with thinking, speech, social skills, timekeeping, 

maths or memory 

•mood, attention or behaviouralproblems

•problems with theliver, kidneys, heart or other organs 

•hearing and vision problems 

Medium and long 

term

Average to 

strong

Pre-conception

10.8%

16.2%

15.4%

England

Derby

Derbyshire

2017/18, Fingertips

Smoking status at time of delivery

319

319

248

Derbyshire

Derby

England

2015/17, Fingertips

Admission episodes for alcohol-related 

conditions (narrow) – under 40s (female) 
DSR per 100,000

19%

21%

27%

England (hospitals)

Chesterfield Royal

Hospital NHS…

University Hospitals

of Derby and Burton…

March 19, NHS digital

Mothers with an obese BMI at time of booking 

P
age 34



Better       Similar       Worse compared to England  

Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   Benefit term 

Strength 

of 

evidence

Evidenced reduction in 

decay in 5yr olds with 

targeted provision of: 

supervised toothbrushing

programme, fluoride varnish 

programme, toothbrushes 

and toothpaste by HVs, and

water fluoridation as 

universal

Tooth decay is almost entirely preventable.  

Dental disease is more prevalent in deprived 

areas.

Tooth decay was the most common reason for 

hospital admissions in 5-9 yr olds in 

2012/2013.(PHE oral health commissioning 

guidance)  134 hospital admissions for 0-5s for 

dental caries in the County in 15/16 –17/18.

Short, Medium and 

Long

In year benefits that 

will accrue over time.  

Would offer an ROI 

within 12 months for 

targeted fluoride 

varnish and 

supervised 

toothbrushing to the 

NHS.

Strong

Child Immunisation 

Screening co-ordinator and

Childrens Centres role

After clean water, vaccination is the most 

effective public health intervention in the 

world for saving lives and promoting good 

health (PHE), preventing up to 3 million 

deaths worldwide each year

Childhood routine vaccinations show coverage 

decline nationally (NHS Digital).

Short Strong

Healthy Settings

Invest in Childrens Centres to 

expand the offer, focusing on 

prevention and early 

intervention akin to Sure 

Start approach

-reducing childhood obesity

-breastfeeding

-school readiness

-physical activity

Impact on Adverse 

Taking an asset based approach to engaging 

with communities and individuals to support 

improvements in physical and mental health 

of families

Long Strong

Pre-conception0 – 5 Years  

School Readiness: children with free school 

meal status achieving a good level of 

development at the end of reception

2017/18, Fingertips

51.3%

61.5%

56.6%

Derbyshire

Derby

England

20.4%

24.0%

23.3%

Derbyshire

Derby

England

Children with 1 or more decayed, 

missing or filled teeth - five year olds

2014/15 & 201617, Fingertips

Population vaccination coverage – Flu 

(2-3 years old)*

43.5%

46.0%

54.7%

England

Derby

Derbyshire

2017/18, Fingertips

P
age 35



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Reduce risky behaviours –

Family-based approaches 

where parents have 

problematic substance use 

as their children are at risk 

of both adverse childhood 

experiences generally and 

of substance related harms 

later in life.

Community-based 

approaches supporting 

young people across 

services, models that build 

on existing community 

assets and create links 

between youth services, 

and training young people 

to be peer-educators. 

Increase focus on known protective factors to 

prevent or slow the uptake of substance 

misuse in young people including: investment 

in CYP psychological and emotional 

wellbeing; strong attachment to parents 

(offer universal skills-based parenting 

programmes to avoid stigmatisation); 

promote strong attachment to well-

resourced schools and community (news 

schools prevention programme)

Short and 

medium 

term

Medium

term

Medium 

term

Advice from

national 

substance 

misuse 

prevention 

charity

UK evidence for 

families where 

PAM features

US evidence for 

community 

initiatives which 

see CYP as part 

of delivering 

solutions rather 

than as the 

problem

Healthy Settings

Re-establish the Healthy 

Schools Programme

Invest in additional School 

Nurses

Core focus on mental health and wellbeing 

through a ‘whole school’ approach, since 

unhealthy behaviours cluster in children and 

adolescents just as they do in adults.

MacArthur et al 

2013;

Kipping et al 

2012)

Invest in mile a day co-

ordination

This type intervention is effective at 

increasing levels of Moderate/Vigorous 

Physical Activity, reducing sedentary time, 

increasing physical fitness and improving 

body composition in Primary school children.  

Long Weak

Pre-conception5 – 19 Years  

Hospital admissions due to substance misuse (15-

24 years) DSR per 100,000

2016/16 -17/18 Fingertips

87.9

91.2

119.2

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Hospital admissions as a result of self-harm (10-

24 years) DSR Rate per 100,000

421.2

423.4

540.2

England

Derby

Derbyshire

2017/18 Fingertips

Year 6: Prevalence of obesity (including 

overweight)

2017/18 Fingertips
34.3%

36.8%

33.0%

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Hospital admissions for mental health 

conditions (5-16 years) Crude rate per 100,000

2017/18 Fingertips

84.7

55.3

111.7

England

Derby

Derbyshire

P
age 36



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Healthy Settings;

Invest in Workplace Health 

initiatives to expand access to 

relevant wellbeing  services

For working-age people work is a barrier to 

engaging with wellbeing services. Workplace 

health programmes ensure the workplace 

becomes a facilitative environment for wellbeing 

services by engaging employer and employees

Short Average

Integrated health 

improvement service offer at 

scale – stop smoking, weight 

mgt, physical activity (inc.

exercise referral and cardiac 

rehab).  Holistic model linked 

to housing, employment, 

education and skills support.

Risk reduction of CVD, type 2 diabetes, respiratory 

diseases, some cancers.

In the UK smoking remains the most preventable 

cause of premature death, ill health and health 

inequality. People who smoke or are exposed to 

second-hand smoke are increasing their risk of 

developing various serious health problems 

including cancer, coronary heart disease, stroke 

and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease .

Short, 

Medium and 

Long term

Strong

Suicide Prevention Training –

scaled to cover all NHS 

providers

80% of people who take their own life are not 

known to mental health services. The signs and 

symptoms of suicidal ideation can be seen by 

anyone. Giving them awareness and confidence to 

intervene will help to reduce the number of 

suicides.

Long –

sustainable 

investment 

to change 

culture/ 

perception

Strong –

embedded as a 

key component 

of national and 

local strategies

Supporting parents around 

alcohol use and misuse

Parents are more likely to drink than those without 

children. Many first time parents speak of isolation, 

anxiety and stress when they have a child.  Alcohol 

can be an accessible, convenient coping mechanism. 

Parental alcohol misuse (PAM) is a critical Adverse 

Childhood Experience. Studies show a graded dose-

response relationship between ACEs and negative 

health and well-being outcomes. Addressing PAM 

early can reduce its impact on the health of the 

parent, and have a significant impact on the health 

and wellbeing of the child(ren).

Medium and 

long term

Strong

evidence for 

intergeneration

al impact of  

reducing ACEs

Pre-conception20 – 39 Years  

Sickness absence - % of employees who had at 

least one day off in the previous week

2015-17, Fingertips2.1

1.6

2.0

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Smoking attributable hospital admissions                             

DSR rate per 100,000 

2017/18, Fingertips

1530

1717

1592

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Suicide rate (Persons)  DSR rate per 100,000 

2016 - 18, Fingertips
9.6

7.7

8.4

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Admission episodes for alcohol-related conditions 

(narrow) DSR per 100,000

2017/18, Fingertips

632
811

710

England

Derbyshire

P
age 37



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Promoting healthy settings

Invest in a scalable and co-

ordinated healthy workplaces 

offer

Menopause focused?

For working-age people work is a barrier to engaging 

with wellbeing services. Workplace health 

programmes ensure the workplace becomes a 

facilitative environment for wellbeing services by 

engaging employer and employees.

Short Average

Integrated health 

improvement service offer at 

scale – stop smoking, weight 

management, physical 

activity.  Holistic model linked 

to housing, employment, 

education and skills support.

Risk reduction of CVD, type 2 diabetes, respiratory 

diseases, some cancers.

Obesity is one of the leading causes of preventable 

deaths in England. Those with excess weight have a 

higher risk of developing type-2 diabetes, developing 

certain cancers and having higher blood pressure. 

Short, 

Medium 

and Long 

term

Strong

Suicide Prevention Training –

scaled to cover all NHS 

providers

80% of people who take their own life are not known 

to mental health services. The signs and symptoms of 

suicidal ideation can be seen by anyone. Giving them 

awareness and confidence to intervene will help to 

reduce the number of suicides.

Long –

need to 

change 

culture/ 

perception

Strong –

embedded as a 

key component 

of national and 

local strategies

Promote activities and 

campaigns to de-normalise

excessive alcohol use 

Alcohol has been identified as a causal factor in more 

than 60 medical conditions. Alcohol accounts for over 

a third of all cases of liver disease. Alcohol 

consumption increases with education and income, 

and this age group is the most likely to consume the 

most alcohol..

Medium 

and long 

term 

Average –

more impact at 

population level 

on harmful 

drinking than 

dependence

Long-term condition 

management programme at 

scale across the city & county

LTC’s account for a large percentage of the morbidity 

within the population.  Supporting people to better 

manage their LTCs has a positive impact on the 

individuals health and wellbeing and also reduces the 

amount of primary and secondary care 

appointments required.

Medium 

and long 

term

Average

40 - 59

Adults classified as overweight or obese 

2017/18, Fingertips

62.0%

65.5%

65.3%

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Male suicide rate 34-64 years (Persons) Crude rate per 100,000 

2013 - 17, Fingertips
20.1

18.8

18.9

England

Derby

Derbyshire

% of adults binge drinking on heaviest drinking day 

2011-14, Fingertips

16.50%
17.20%

15.00%

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care 

sensitive conditions ISR per 100,000

2017/18, ACSC822.6
955.2

878.6

England

Derby

Derbyshire

Sickness absence - % of employees who had at 

least one day off in the previous week

2015-17, Fingertips2.1

1.6

2.0

England

Derby

Derbyshire

P
age 38



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Falls Prevention

Fully implemented the 

evidence based falls 

pathway across Derbyshire

Preventing falls through appropriate and 

timely support, including falls exercise 

prevention reduced falls rates and severity of 

falls. In older people, alcohol use is associated 

with an increased risk of dementia, frailty, 

and slips, trips and falls.

Medium Strong

Integrated health 

improvement service offer 

at scale – stop smoking, 

weight management, 

physical activity (including 

exercise referral and 

cardiac rehab).  Holistic 

model linked to housing,

retirement planning, social 

connectedness. 

Risk reduction of CVD, type 2 diabetes, 

respiratory diseases, some cancers.

Keeping physically active is proven to help 

reduce your risk of heart and circulatory 

disease by helping you maintain a healthy 

weight, and reduce your blood pressure and 

cholesterol.

Short, 

Medium 

and Long 

term

Average -

Strong

Long-term condition 

management programme 

at scale across the city and 

county.

LTC’s account for a large percentage of the morbidity 

within the population.  Supporting people to better 

manage their LTCs has a positive impact on the 

individuals health and wellbeing and also reduces the 

amount of primary and secondary care 

appointments required.

Medium 

and long 

term

Average

Pre-conception60 – 69 

2277

2306

2170

Derbyshire

Derby

England

Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in 

people aged 65 and over

DSR per 100,000

2017/18, Fingertips

67.3%

65.1%

66.3%

Derbyshire

Derby

England

% of physically active adults

2017/18, Fingertips

Better       Similar       Worse compared to England  

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory 

care sensitive conditions ISR per 100,000

2017/18, ACSC

822.6

955.2

878.6

England

Derby

Derbyshire

P
age 39



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Falls Prevention

Fully implemented the 

evidence based falls 

pathway across Derbyshire

Preventing falls through appropriate and 

timely support, including falls exercise 

prevention reduced falls rates and severity 

of falls. In older people, alcohol use is 

associated with an increased risk of 

dementia, frailty, and slips, trips and falls.

Short Strong

Social Isolation- deliver 

activity such as social 

connectedness at scale

Feeling socially connected to the people in 

your life is associated with decreased risk 

for all-cause mortality as well as a range of 

disease morbidities including increased falls 

risk and later-life dementia

Short Strong 

Bereavement Support

To proactively offer help 

around bereavement.

Interlinked with a broader 

mental health approach, 

including support networks. 

Specialist focus on people 

bereaved by suicide

Bereavement is a major life event, with 

many potential knock-on implications.

Short Uncertain

Affordable warmth Evidence shows that living in cold homes is 

associated with poor health outcomes and an 

increased risk of morbidity and mortality for all 

age groups; furthermore, studies have shown 

that more than one in five (21.5%) excess 

winter deaths in England and Wales are 

attributable to the coldest 25% of housing

Short Strong 

Pre-conception70+

5939

5803

5469

Derbyshire

Derby

England

Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in 

people aged 65 and over – aged 80+

Directly Standardised rate- per 100,000

2017/18, Fingertips

40.7%

48.9%

44.0%

Derbyshire

Derby

England

Social isolation: adult social care users who have as 

much social contact as they would like (65+ years)

2017/18, Fingertips

13.3%

20.5%

66.9%

Yes

No, but I would have liked to

No, but I did not want to…

Since he / she died, have you spoken to anyone from 

health and social services, or from a bereavement service, 

about your feelings about his/her illness and death? 

Voices2015 (ONS)

11.6%

13.2%

11.1%

Derbyshire

Derby

England

% of households in fuel poverty

2016, Fingertips

P
age 40



Area of focus Rationale Relevant benchmarking   
Benefit 

term 

Strength of 

evidence

Compassionate 

Communities

Improving conversations and preparedness 

around the topic of death and dying 

empowers and enables people to make 

informed decisions

Short Average 

Place of death Only around half of deaths occur in a person’s 

usual place of residence (home, care homes 

and religious establishments).  The 

assumption is that most people would prefer 

to die at home.

Short N/A

Reducing drug related 

deaths

Every drug related death is preventable. 

ACMD and most recently the Health and 

Social Care Committee have called for a 

radical change to prevent drug related 

deaths. Greater investment in treatment, 

fully resourcing the workforce and reducing 

caseloads, and increasing outreach provision 

for the most vulnerable in society. 

Short and 

medium 

term

Overwhelming

Pre-conceptionDeath

4.4

4.9

4.3

Derbyshire

Derby

England

Deaths from drug misuse 
DSR- per 100,000

2015 - 17, Fingertips

33.9%

60.4%

5.7%

Yes

No

Not Sure

Did he/she ever say where he/she would 

like to die?

Voices2015 (ONS)

81.1%

8.2%

2.6%

6.7%

1.4%

At home

In a hospice

In a hospital

In a care home

Somewhere else

Where did he/she say that he/she would 

like to die? 

Voices2015 (ONS)

P
age 41



Factors across the life course 

Quality conversations

Expansion of the quality conversations approach adapted across all health and care providers 

within the Derbyshire system.  This work has taken the original concept behind making every 

contact count (MECC) and developed a short training package for frontline staff underpinned by 

health psychology principles.  Derbyshire County Council Public Health and Derbyshire 

Community Health Services have developed this training, trialled and evaluated it, if this were to 

be rolled-out system wide it has the opportunity to make a real impact and increase engagement 

with health improvement services.

Health Literacy

Essential for successful access to care and use of services, self-care of chronic conditions, and 

maintenance of health and wellness. If health literacy is increased across the population it will 

have a positive impact on how citizens engage with and utilise health and care resources as 

well as how they manage their own health.  A well co-ordinated, resourced, consistent and 

pro-longed approach across all health and care service providers is required.

Integrated health improvement approach across disease pathways

To provide a more holistic approach to health care by joining up clinical pathways and services. 

To improve reduction in costs to hospitals, primary care. Provide services to support this such as 

Exercise by Referral for Cancer Prehab/pathway: Exercise by Referral for pulmonary rehab, 

diabetes and other existing conditions/Cardiac rehabilitation  (potentially things like Walking/Jog 

Derbyshire – through a social prescribing type pathway).

Emotional and Mental Wellbeing

A system and workforce that considers emotional and mental wellbeing at every point, in parity 

with physical health and wider determinants factors. The focus that ‘mental health is 

everyone’s business’.  The key point is that emotional and mental wellbeing underpins 

everything and directly influences the ability of people to be independent and stable, to 

manage conditions and to lead healthy, purposeful and quality lives. Key life events such as 

diagnosis with a condition, birth of a child, trauma and bereavement are an opportunity to 

proactively integrate the offer of support for emotional and mental wellbeing.

P
age 42



Ways the NHS Strategic 
Commissioner can support the 
wider system as an anchor 
institution: 

Employment Financial Inclusion Air quality  Environment  

Support and develop Apprenticeships.  

As part of social value considerations 

in all tenders look to encourage 

Provider organisations to develop 

Apprenticeships.

Lead and support further 

development of the independent 

placement support (IPS) model in 

relevant service commissioning e.g. 

mental health services.

Look at opportunities of pathways to 

employment as part of standard care 

pathways for appropriate patient 

cohorts.  This type of approach is 

currently being trialled on a small 

scale within a Chesterfield Practice.

Focus on local people for 

employment, including supporting 

those furthest from the labour market 

into employment.

A substantial proportion of General 

Practice appointments are connected 

to underlying issues of debt and 

financial exclusion.  Across Derbyshire 

County there is already CAB provision 

in nearly every General Practice 

commissioned by the County Council.  

The CCG could support more of this 

work across the city and county 

(including Welfare Rights) which has 

been demonstrated to save GP time 

and help individuals manage their 

debt, access all benefits to which they 

are entitled and improve their mental 

health and wellbeing.

As part of social value considerations, 

look to work with living wage 

employers and employers with a 

relative threshold between highest 

and lowest paid staff of less than 1:20 

where appropriate.

Actively support the financial 

inclusion and reduction in food 

poverty agenda.

Focus on working with local 

companies and suppliers in 

partnership with NHS Providers to 

reduce carbon footprint.

Implement effective sustainable and 

active travel policies for employees 

and work with provider organisations 

to ensure they do the same.

Work with NHS Providers to ensure 

that where possible all NHS 

organisations locally have ultra low 

emission fleet vehicles.

Ensure effective policies and ways of 

working are in place to allow 

employees to utilise technology e.g. 

Skype to reduce work related travel.

Work with NHS providers to source 

renewable energy provision for NHS 

services.

Advocate for actions to improve local 

environments e.g. limiting new fast 

food takeaways near schools, support 

and challenge local Planning 

Authorities in relation to this.

Advocate, support and where 

appropriate lead in the development 

of planning healthy environments (see 

the NHS Healthy New Towns 

initiative), including building in active 

by design, safe and dementia friendly 

communities.

Support and advocate for the 

development and implementation of 

cycling and active travel infrastructure 

across the local area, including 

supporting local bids to national 

schemes.

Work with NHS providers to ensure 

health NHS settings e.g. healthy 

vending machine policies, smoke free 

front premises (including hospital 

entrances)

NHS Strategic 

Commissioners 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

  
IMPROVEMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – HEALTH 

 
25 November 2019 

 
 VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR GRANTS REVIEW 

 
 
1. Purpose of the report 
 
To provide an update on the Council’s review of voluntary and sector grant 
funding review to facilitate discussions about the approach, progress and 
direction of travel. 
 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
On 28 February 2019, Cabinet agreed plans to undertake a council wide 
review of VCS grants. It was agreed that the review would: 
 

 Consider all grants provided by the Council to VCS organisations in 
Derbyshire and subsequently develop a coordinated and consistent council 
wide approach to allocate future resources 

 Consider the support provided by the Council to VCS infrastructure 
organisations across Derbyshire, in collaboration with partners, and 
develop a new model for allocating funding moving forward which supports 
the Council’s ambitions and priorities. 

 
The VCS in Derbyshire plays a vital role in keeping people active, connected 
to others, increases health and wellbeing and provides a safety net for people 
during times of difficulty. Much of this activity is not driven by the Council but 
by the local people responding to community needs. It is important the Council 
ensures that the VCS in this context continues to thrive and a key part of this 
will be improving the existing approach to funding the sector. 
 
Since February 2019, the Council has undertaken a review of the grants 
currently provided to voluntary and community sector organisations. This has 
established a baseline and a shared understanding of current grant funding 
approaches across the Council and the current VCS infrastructure landscape 
in Derbyshire. A proposal for the future delivery of VCS infrastructure support, 
is now in development. 
 
On 4 April 2019, Improvement and Scrutiny Committee Health met with 
officers from the Council to discuss plans for the review, as evidence towards 
a Scrutiny Report on the ‘The Impact of the Derbyshire CCGs’ Financial 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

Recovery Plan on Service Users – Scoping and Progress Report’, published 
on 20th May 2019.  
 
Work to undertake and complete the review will take place over the next 
twelve months with a number of key identified milestones. The proposed end 
date for completion and implementation of the infrastructure review is August 
2020, with the wider grants funding review expected to be completed and 
implemented by September 2020. 
 
2.1 Infrastructure proposal 
 
Over the past eight months, work to identify the support provided to the sector 
by VCS infrastructure organisations has taken place with partners and the 
infrastructure organisations themselves. There is no current ‘framework’ for 
VCS infrastructure or a shared understanding across the Council or partners 
about the role of infrastructure organisations. The review therefore provides 
the opportunity to set out what the Council wants from infrastructure providers 
moving forward.  
 
The Council wants to ensure that the VCS in Derbyshire is supported to grow 
and thrive. To achieve this it is proposed that the Council commits to the 
following principles in its approach to developing and delivering infrastructure 
support moving forward:  
 

 Valued – Infrastructure providers play a vital role supporting the VCS to 
allow communities to support themselves and meet the specific needs of 
local people 

 Sustainable –The Council understands that its funding approach needs to 
offer greater sustainability to provider organisations, which includes 
certainty regarding future funding commitments 

 Transparent – It must be made clear which organisations the Council 
funds for infrastructure support and what outcomes have been achieved for 
the Council’s investment 

 Local – The VCS works best when it is local and at the heart of 
communities. Any provision of support needs to reflect this 

 Proportional – What the Council requires of infrastructure organisations 
will be commensurate to the level of funding provided 

 Outcome driven – Infrastructure investment will focus on outcomes rather 
than how support is delivered 

 Fair – Infrastructure funding needs to be fairly distributed throughout the 
county to ensure that community organisations receive an equitable offer of 
support regardless of their location 

 Independent – The Council recognises the independence of the voluntary 
and community sector. 

 

Page 46



3 
 

These principles have been developed following analysis of engagement and 
discussions with officers at the Council, current infrastructure providers and 
partner organisations which identified common themes and current 
challenges. 
There will be a 12 week period of consultation on draft infrastructure 
proposals, which is required under the current Derbyshire Compact with the 
VCS.  During this time there will be a series of consultations with key 
stakeholders. 
 
2.2 VCS Grant Funding Framework 

 
Over the past eight months, a review into how the Council currently provides 
grant funding to the VCS has been completed. This has resulted in the 
production of a detailed list of grant programmes and individual grants to 
voluntary and community sector organisations in Derbyshire. It is recognised 
that other public sector organisations in Derbyshire make a considerable 
contribution to the funding available for the VCS as well as having substantial 
experience and expertise working with the sector. 
 
The Council’s ambition is to develop a new approach to grants funding, which 
will lead to a fundamental change in the way in which grants across the 
organisation are currently administered. It is proposed that any new standards 
for awarding grants take an outcomes based approach to ensure that future 
investment supports the Council’s strategic priorities moving forward.  
 
Further work on the development of this approach will be taking place over 
forthcoming months as part of the review process. Work on the development 
of grants criteria which focus on outcomes rather than inputs will also be 
taking place. The change of emphasis from inputs (funding) to outcomes 
(impact) is significant and will require a change of mind-set from the way that 
grants are currently distributed, monitored and reviewed. 
 
2.3 Next Steps 

 
Ensuring that the Council continues to progress the work at pace and meet 
the identified milestones is vital. Due to time pressures and the complex 
nature of the work, a number of the key steps identified above are being 
undertaken concurrently. 
 
3. Officer Recommendation 
 
The Committee is requested to: 
 
1. Note progress made on the review of the Council’s voluntary and 

community sector grants.  
 

Page 47



4 
 

Emma Alexander and Helen Jones 
Executive Director for Commissioning, Communities and Policy and  

Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Health 
Derbyshire County Council 

Page 48



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carers Report 

 

Understanding the quality of life for carers in 

Derbyshire 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

      Date: June 2019 

 Author: Hannah Morton 

           Job Title: Insight and Intelligence Manager 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 

1 
 

CONTENTS           

Page No 

 

1. Thank you         2 

           

 

2. Disclaimer         2 

            

     

3. Background         2 

            

      

4. Rationale for the report        3 

 

 

5. What we did in brief       3 

             

     

6. Key findings         6 

 

 

7. What people told us       6 

 

 

8. What should happen now               19 

 

 

9. Response from service providers              20 

                  

 

10.  Your feedback                31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 
 
 
 

2 
 

            

1. Thank you  

Healthwatch Derbyshire (HWD) would like to thank all participants who gave their time to 

talk to us about their experiences of health and social care service in Derbyshire in 

relation to the quality of life for carers. We also extend our thanks to the many groups and 

services who supported and cooperated with this engagement activity. 

 

2. Disclaimer  

 

The comments outlined in this report should be taken in the context that they are not 

representative of all patients, family, friends and carers who have experienced health and 

social care service in relation to dementia care but nevertheless offer a useful insight. It is 

important to note that the engagement was carried out within a specific time frame and 

therefore only provides a snapshot of patient experience collected at that point in time. 

They are the genuine thoughts, feelings and issues that patients, families, friends and 

carers have conveyed to HWD.  

 

The data should be used in conjunction with, and to complement, other sources of data 

that are available.  

 

3. Background 

HWD is an independent voice for the people of Derbyshire.  We are here to listen to the 
experiences of Derbyshire residents and give them a stronger say in influencing how local 
health and social care services are provided. 
 
We listen to what people have to say about their experiences of using health and social 
care services and feed this information through to those responsible for providing the 
services.  We also ensure services are held to account for how they use this feedback to 
influence the way services are designed and run. 
 
HWD was set up in April 2013 as a result of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, and is 
part of a network of local Healthwatch organisations covering every local authority across 
England.  
 
The Healthwatch network is supported in its work by Healthwatch England who build a 
national picture of the issues that matter most to health and social care users and will 
ensure that this evidence is used to influence those who plan and run services at a 
national level. 
 

According to Derbyshire Carers Association (2019): 

 

“There are over 120,000 people providing unpaid care for loved ones in Derbyshire. 

Established in 1988, Derbyshire Carers Association supports carers who look after a friend 

or family member who, due to illness, disability, mental health problems or an addiction 

cannot cope without their help and support. 

 

Page 51



 
 
 
 

3 
 

“Many people who are supporting someone do not see themselves as a carer but as 

relatives or friends. Caring for others can be complex and demanding, physically taxing 

and mentally draining. Carers often become so focused on the person they care for that 

they forget to look after themselves. To keep going it is essential that carers look after 

their own health and well-being.” 

For more information around Derbyshire Carers Association, please visit: 

https://derbyshirecarers.co.uk/  

4. Rationale for the report 
 

To ensure a diverse range of individuals are able to share their views on local health and 
social care services, HWD undertake targeted pieces of work, paying specific attention to 

those who may otherwise struggle to be heard.  
 
Derbyshire County Council (DCC) carry out the biennial Survey of Adult Carers in England 

(SACE) which seeks the opinions of adult carers, caring for an adult 18 and over, on a 
number of topics that are considered to be indicative of a balanced life alongside the  
unpaid caring role. The survey is designed to help the adult social care sector understand 

more about how services are affecting carer’s lives. 
 
On a national level, the SACE has suggested very little movement in terms of improving 

outcomes for carers and shown a steady decline in the last five years in overall 
satisfaction on what was, in survey terms, already at a low level. Locally, the SACE has 
also reflected a gradual decline in satisfaction, which was hard to unpick given the tick 

box nature of the survey, leaving DCC with some gaps in their knowledge and 
understanding of carers’ quality of life. 
  

As a result, between January and March 2019, HWD engaged with carers both in, and not 
in, receipt of services to explore their views and experiences around the themes of the 
SACE. The information presented will help DCC to understand the challenges faced by 

carers and how they can best plan and respond to them across the system.  
 
 

5. What we did in brief 

 

To collect consistent information across the county, a series of questions were developed 

to provide a framework for discussions with carers, which were based around the topics of 

the SACE and indicators of a balanced life alongside caring.   

 

Our engagement team visited various groups and services between January and March 

2019, in order to gather the views and experiences of carers.  

 

In total, we spoke to 428 carers about their experiences, and we did this in a number of 

different ways. 

 

1. Through visiting groups and events which enabled us to get in touch with carers 

2. Phone calls 

3. Home visits.  

Page 52

https://derbyshirecarers.co.uk/


 
 
 
 

4 
 

 

5.1 Who we spoke to 

 

The following charts provide the demographics of those who took part in our engagement:  

 

5.1.1 Gender: 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our engagement team worked very hard to talk to both male and female carers, however 

only 30% of respondents were male. According to Carers UK, women are more likely to 

take on a caring role, there are 6.5 million unpaid carers in the UK and 3.34 million (58%) 

are women.  

 

5.1.2: Age 

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As mentioned within the rationale for this report, we were tasked to engage with adult 

carers. The biggest age group was 65-79 with a total of 131 carers. 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



 
 
 
 

5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5.1.3 Where do you live? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our engagement team worked very hard to ensure they reached carers from each district 

across Derbyshire.  

 

5.1.4 In addition to your caring role do you work in a paid or unpaid role?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 
 
 
 

6 
 

The majority of the carers we spoke to were retired, however 6% were in full time 

employment and a further 9% were in part time employment.  

 

 

 

6. Key findings 

 
 The role of a carer impacts negatively on an individual’s quality of life 

 Carers have had to make sacrifices in order to care for their loved one, for example 

having to give up work completely or reduce their hours 

 Most carers felt their health was affected, due to not having the time to 

book/attend appointments and for some, their caring responsibilities had impacted 

upon their mental health 

 Being a carer is a 24/7 job and this should be acknowledged by professionals 

 A huge proportion of carers explained they had very little, or no time at all for 

themselves and felt they had no control over their daily lives 

 Social contact and the ability for carers to have a ‘break’ was often reduced due 

time, finances and unpredictability of the cared for 

 Peer support was described as invaluable and many carers felt support groups 

should be promoted more 

 Mental health carers explained they did not know where to go for support, which 

was often made worse because of the stigma of mental health and people not 

wanting to talk about it 

 Many carers explained difficulties of finding the right information at the right time 

and felt a ‘one stop shop’ would be a huge benefit 

 Majority of the carers we spoke to had not had a carer’s assessment, many carers 

were not aware that they were entitled to an assessment of their needs 

 A number of carers felt the assessments were focused more towards caring for 

people with a physical illness and not a mental illness 

 Carers want professionals to take the time to listen to them and offer support 

when it is needed 

 A high proportion of carers explained they did not feel their views or opinions were 

considered or valued by professionals. However, carers of people living with 

dementia felt very involved within their loved ones care 

 A large proportion of carers were unaware of their rights, and were unsure how to 

find out about them. 

 

7. What people told us 

 

7.1  Quality of life for carers: 

 

Most carers explained that their quality of life had reduced or changed as a result of their 

caring role.  

 

7.1.1 Work commitments 

 

Page 55



 
 
 
 

7 
 

A large proportion of carers were retired (47%), however some explained that they had to 

give up work completely or reduce their hours to be able to care for their loved one.  

 

A number of carers explained, they were unable to juggle both work and their caring role, 

especially when the health of the person they cared for began to deteriorate, causing 

their caring role to increase and it was simply no longer possible for them to carry on 

working.  

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “I didn’t have the time to do both, so I had to give up work, I would like to still be 

in work” 

- “I still work and have altered my job so I can work from home on a computer when 

I have a free hour or so” 

- “I had to give up work to become a carer.” 

 

7.1.2 Impact on health 

 

Most carers explained that their caring role had a negative impact on their health. This 

varied from physically not feeling very well, but just not having the time to book a 

doctor’s appointment so symptoms persisted and also, the impact on carers mental health 

due to their caring responsibilities.  

 

A number of carers explained they had experienced anxiety and depression as a result of 

their caring role and had received prescription medication to help manage their mental 

health. 

 

One carer explained that following a hospital admission she still had to arrange everything 

at home, “Even when I was ill I still had to be a carer 24/7, I had to put myself second.” 

 

When she was discharged home she received no further help or support as her husband 

was at home, despite explaining to staff that her husband had mental health issues and 

would be unable to care for her. As a result a family member had to take unpaid leave 

from work to be able to care for her. The carer felt that if her husband had a physical 

illness there would have been support put in place to help back at home. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “I don’t always have the time or opportunity to look after my health or go to 

my doctors, it would be good if you could have joint appointments to speak 

about your health when you take your partner for their appointments, just to 

see if you are OK” 

- “Many carers are isolated as a result of being a carer and feel alone which 

affect your mental health. Being a carer is 24 hours a day, it is exhausting and 

debilitating and affects your health, you cannot find the time to look after 

Page 56



 
 
 
 

8 
 

yourself. An acknowledgement of what carers do on a daily basis and how that 

impacts of you should be a priority for the local authority” 

- “I am tired all of the time, physically and mentally” 

- “If their health drops, so does yours, especially your mental health” 

- A number of mental health carers explained there could be “emotional 

blackmail” from their loved ones at times as, “… they do not realise how 

upsetting they are being” 

- “There is no recognition of how caring impacts our health, you are constantly 

worrying about the person you are caring for, who cares for us?” 

 

7.2  Caring responsibilities 

 

Some carers had been caring for a loved one for several months, whereas others had been 

caring for 20+ years.  

 

In terms of the length of time spent caring each day varied considerably, but it was a 

common consensus that being a carer was a 24/7 job, even when a carer is not physically 

performing a caring act, they are still worrying or thinking of their loved one. It was also 

felt that this is something that should be acknowledged by professionals. 

 

The responsibilities varied, some carers explained their role is often prompting and 

promoting self-care, whereas other carers undertake personal care for example bathing 

and toileting. Majority of the carers explained they have to do all of the cooking, cleaning 

and household tasks.  

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “You are always on alert unless you fall asleep from exhaustion and then you do 

not sleep properly” 

- “It is 24/7, even when I awake in the night, I worry about what the noise is that 

awoke me, has he fallen? Is he OK? When the phone rings you worry that is it 

because he has fallen, even when they are at day care or respite there are 

constant calls and worry” 

- “He would never have a wash or shave if I didn’t tell him and remind him, he would 

have no idea if he smells or not” 

- “Mental health carers do not have to do personal care but have to manage the 

household and bear the responsibility for everything” 

- “I make and cancel appointments for the person I care for, I help them to attend 

appointments and to get out and about. I cook, clean, organise everything and pay 

the bills, I basically make sure everything runs smoothly” 

- “I know I have it easy compared to someone who lives with a dependant relative, 

but this person is just a former colleague. I feel obliged to continue supporting her 

because she had no-one else.” 

 

7.3  Carers time to self 

 

Page 57



 
 
 
 

9 
 

A huge proportion of carers explained they had very little, or no time at all for themselves 

and some explained they felt guilty when they did. The majority of carers said they had no 

control over their daily lives, as everything revolved around the person they care for.  

 

A very small number of carers had support from family and friends, which enabled them to 

get a couple of hours per week to themselves. 

 

One carer explained, “Even though I have family I feel isolated, especially in the evenings. 

As a carer your role is to help the individual in the home … we are constantly on call and 

going out is a big thing and sometimes day to day routines can become mundane. Having 

family members to help out makes such a difference, it is essential to have a strong 

supportive network. That said, there can be an assumption made that carers are OK and 

coping if they have family support. It is really difficult for me to get the support I need as 

professionals are not linked up, I feel passed through the system. Sometimes there is too 

much information and it is just too overwhelming to take in, or sometimes there is not 

enough information and I don’t know where to go for what I need.” 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “I just used to go out once a month to the hair dressers” 

- “In the little time I have for myself, I do very little as I am tired all the time. I lie 

on the sofa and watch TV if I can stay awake” 

- “As a carer you can feel very alone … attending the carers support group is a 

lifeline where I am not alone in my struggles, I can be in a place where people can 

understand what I am going through and everyone shares tips to help me out” 

- “My partner goes to day care once a week, but I cannot use that time for myself as 

I find myself using it cleaning up and sorting things out for his return” 

- "My life is gone, I look out the window at my neighbours living their lives, coming 

and going and think why can't I do that?" 

- “I feel as though I have no control over what time I do have spare, and how I use it. 

This is because partly society doesn’t value my care, contribution or respect it.” 

 
7.4 Social contact 
 

7.4.1  Impact on social contact 
 
Many carers explained the difficulties of maintaining social contact with friends and family 

due to their caring role. 

 

Some carers explained that since they took on the role of caring for their loved one, they 

are often unable to maintain social contact mainly due to time, finances and 

unpredictability of the cared for. 

 

Some carers explained, that in order for them to go out with friends (regardless of how 

long for), they would need someone to look after their loved one, which costs money and 

not all carers can afford this.  

Page 58



 
 
 
 

10 
 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “My life was turned upside down, we used to get asked to do things all of the time, 

but not anymore as we had to keep cancelling at the last minute as my husband 

was not well enough to go” 

- “It is very difficult to sometimes accept invitations to events. Just as I am ready to 

leave the house with my husband, he can change his mind and refuse to go with 

me. Just in the last few months, I have either missed nights out, or had to go on 

my own… If I do go on my own, I then spend the evening worrying” 

- “Caring impacts on my ability to have a social life due to the unpredictable nature 

of the person I care for, and so it is hard to make plans to meet new people” 

- “I just don’t have the time, I don’t see how I can find the time, caring is isolating 

it is all-consuming, its constant, you rely on people visiting you, it is like you are a 

prisoner” 

- “My friends have vanished, meeting up with friends is difficult as you are restricted 

by your caring role, friends are not always able to meet when you are available” 

-  “The difficulty for me is because I run out of time as I am caring and I have no 

energy left so I do not want to go out as I am tired.” 

 

7.5   Carers support groups 

Peer support was described by many carers as ‘invaluable’. Many carers explained that 

through attending support groups, they were able to have open and honest conversations 

about their feelings, share experiences and advice. 

 

One carer said, “I have been coming to [named] carers groups for a few years and it is 

very valuable, talking is a really good thing as you get to learn from other carers and share 

experiences. I need these times to spout off and I really value the time, I feel free here to 

share my feelings as other people who are not carers do not understand. The benefits of 

carers groups should be promoted more.” 

 

Many carers felt support groups should be promoted more, as many carers are unaware of 

local groups. One person explained, “If the GP can remind you about an appointment they 

could also let you know about support groups or mention them to carers during their 

appointments to check they know what is available in their area.” 

 

Although many carers are aware of the benefits of attending support groups, many are 

unable to do so due to time, finances and unpredictability of their loved ones. It was 

suggested by some carers to have more availability and flexibility of respite care as most 

carers just want ‘a few hours’ to themselves.  

 

Furthermore, according to one carers groups, Derbyshire Carers are hoping to introduce a 

befriending service and all carers felt this was a very good idea and was something that, 

“Should have happened years ago and should be available for all carers if they need it.” 

 

Page 59



 
 
 
 

11 
 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “It makes you feel not so alone, others will have experienced the same thing and 

know what I am going through” 

- “I attend a carers group specific to mental health, and this peer support is 

invaluable. It is only once a month, but the people who attend are very 

understanding as they have similar experiences” 

- “Just an hour or so (of respite) once every couple of weeks would have made our 

lives so much better” 

- “There is day care but it is from 10-3 which is of no use to us, I just want a couple 

of hours once a fortnight, it would do us both good to be in different company” 

- “It is a catch 22 situation, you need to make sure there is some care for the looked 

after people so carers can attend a group and not have to worry” 

- “It is a place where you can talk about anything or nothing, which is exactly what 

we need” 

- “The group is the only social activity which I share with people. Otherwise, I don’t 

socialise with anyone apart from whoever comes to the house wanting something 

from me” 

- “Services that run side by side may help, perhaps we could have activities that run 

alongside one another.” 

7.6   Information and support 

 

7.6.1 Finding information and support 

 

Carers explained they found out about the information and support available to them 

predominantly by word of mouth, whilst other carers explained that if they needed any 

particular information they would ask their GP.   

 

As previously mentioned, carers groups were again highly commented on especially in 

terms of guest speakers from different organisations.  

 

Many carers explained they would like to have a ‘one stop shop’ where carers could ask a 

question, or share a concern in which a worker would find answers and/or information on 

their behalf. Most carers explained that they simply do not have time to be making 

numerous phone calls, research and chasing people up. 

 

A number of carers felt that GP surgeries could do more to provide information and 

support to carers for example, “GP’s know which patients are carers, they should check 

with them and let them know about things or signpost them to organisations that would be 

able to help.”  

 

In addition, mental health carers felt they received ‘very little or nothing’ from their GP 

with regards to information and support. 

 

Page 60



 
 
 
 

12 
 

Most carers were not aware of the Carers in Derbyshire website and Facebook page, with 

many explaining they prefer to receive information in person or they do not have access to 

the internet. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “The pressure of caring and supposedly knowing everything is often too much to 

bear” 

- “Information sharing amongst the support group, or people you meet by chance is 

good to some degree, but then it is bad if you are not able to get out and about. It 

may also mean that finding the right information comes down to luck which is not 

how it should be” 

- “They (professionals) often do not even tell you things when you ask a direct 

question, let alone offer you other things that may be helpful” 

- “We haven’t got time to keep ringing people up who are never in or work, or they 

are part time. We want to make one phone call, and then for someone to take all 

of our details of what we want, and then someone would get back to us with the 

information they have found” 

- “Mental health carers often feel lost and do not know where to go and this is made 

worse because of the stigma of mental health and people not wanting to talk about 

it” 

- “I don’t see a lot on it (website), what is on it for people caring for adults, what is 

available for parent carers?” 

- “I have seen the Carers in Derbyshire Facebook page. I have looked at their posts 

over the past month and realistically there is nothing posted which would really 

help or interest me.” 

 

7.7   Difficulties obtaining information and support 

Many carers explained their struggles of finding the right information at the right time.  

 

From the carers we spoke to, the most difficult types of information and support to obtain 

were: 

 

1. Benefits and entitlements 

2. Deterioration of a loved one 

3. Breaks and respite (particularly more difficult for self-funders) 

4. Social activities 

5. Aids and adaptions. 

 

In addition, carers also felt additional barriers were put in place which could prevent 

carers being able to access the information and support they required for example: 

 

1. Having to complete or search things online 

2. Spending long periods of time waiting on the phone 

3. Needing to make numerous phone calls, to various people/organisations 

Page 61



 
 
 
 

13 
 

4. Completing lengthy documents.  

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “The main gap in information is about the benefits you can get for being a carer 

and how to apply for it. There are also things you can get from your council which 

you are not told about and are not widely advertised or promoted” 

- “If carers are self-funding they have to do it all themselves (research care) but 

they do not know what to look for and so this can cause additional stress” 

- “Reliable and caring carers (who are paid) is a massive gap, I am happy to pay but 

no one wants to give me a break so I continue even though I am near to breaking 

point myself” 

- “Some carers do not always feel supported as their loved ones deteriorate, it was 

expressed that more information is needed to prepare the carer, so they know 

what to expect” 

- “It (breaks and respite) is all kept very hidden and almost secret so you do not find 

out about it” 

- “I found it hard to find out about activities and support for my father to do to keep 

him entertained and getting some enjoyment from life” 

- “The hardest things to find has been information that is reliable and up to date 

about arranging home care, you do not know where to look or who to ask, no one 

recommends anywhere and it is so hard to find someone or a company that is 

reliable and safe” 

- “You get no help with all the forms, I have never had to do anything like this 

before so dealing with this and the shock and upset of my husband’s diagnosis was 

almost too much, do people not realise or have no sympathy?” 

 

7.8   Carers assessments 

Majority of the carers we spoke to had not had a carer’s assessment, those who had 

explained of the small financial benefit of doing so. However, many carers were not aware 

that they were entitled to an assessment of their needs.  

 

Carers who had undergone an assessment explained they did not like having the 

assessment over the phone and would much prefer it to take place in person.  

 

A number of mental health carers felt the assessments are “biased” towards caring for 

people with a physical illness and not a mental illness.  

 

In addition, a number of carers explained the importance for the worker/professional 

undertaking the assessment to have some knowledge and understanding around the 

condition for example, mental health and to understand how needs made fluctuate and 

therefore this should be taken into consideration during the assessment.  

 

Sample of comments: 

 

Page 62



 
 
 
 

14 
 

- “The assessment made a difference in that I got some money, but I got nothing 

else, no information, no signposting and no support” 

- Derbyshire Carers do not attend the groups or encourage us to apply for an 

assessment, they used to be very good and they used to meet up with you 

personally” 

- “I would like to have the option to do carers assessments face to face rather than 

over the phone” 

- “You and the person you care for could be in a good place at the time of the 

assessment, which means that you could be allocated a lower amount. But as with 

the nature of mental health, the situation of the person you care for and your 

personal needs could change dramatically from day to day” 

- “I haven’t arranged a new one yet, it is a couple of years since I had one with 

Think Carer which was totally clued up on mental health. I keep forgetting to 

making an appointments as I am so busy” 

- “I have had a carers assessment but it did not lead to me being referred anywhere 

to services for any help for either of us, so in many ways it was a waste of time. 

They did say I can ring them if I ever need any help or if things change. It built up 

my hopes but then there were no services to meet my needs or any money to pay 

for them” 

- “Nothing seemed to apply on the form they went through, I would like the 

assessment to take more into account that you are caring for someone with mental 

health.” 

7.9 Encouragement and support from professionals 

 

7.9.1  Community mental health teams 
 

Experiences varied, some carers had positive experiences to share and felt they were 

listened to by mental health professionals, whereas others felt they had to become 

“experts”. 

 

Carers want professionals to take the time to listen to them and offer support when it is 

needed.  

 

One carer explained, they received very little support from mental health services when 

their son first became ill, the family were willing to pay privately for a psychiatrist so they 

didn’t have to wait so long. However, they were told that if they did pay privately, their 

son would not be able to access other NHS help or social care support. As a result, their 

son waited for months to be seen and they felt that if they were seen sooner he may not 

have had long term mental health issues. The carer said, “He used to run his own business 

and employ people, now he will never work again as he has never stabilised or got the 

correct medication that works for him”. The family had no knowledge of mental health 

and felt they were expected to become “experts” and have never received any support 

from services. 

 

Sample of comments: 

Page 63



 
 
 
 

15 
 

 

- Psychiatrists are generally calm and listen well and tend to be more responsive and 

effective at making good decisions and taking adequate measures regarding 

medication, but again sometimes they can be negative and misunderstand the 

patient” 

- “He (the psychiatrist) is OK but you only spend a few minutes with him and I do not 

have time to talk about how being a carer is making me worse and I am worried I 

will get very ill again and have to go to the Radbourne unit for months like I did a 

few years ago. I wish they could provide more help for me to take my mind off how 

low I feel” 

- The groups felt that, “Professionals need to understand that mental health caring 

is not a 9-5 job, it is 24/7 and professionals need to be aware of this … support 

from professionals at groups would be beneficial, workers on the ground (support 

workers) seem to understand the support carers need but this gets held up further 

up the ladder” 

- “Professionals rely on the carers to be resilient and persistent and to know 

everything, we are not experts. Mental health carers are concerned for people who 

do not have a carer.” 

 

7.9.2 GPs 

There was an agreement amongst a number of carers that GPs do not have the time to 

really listen to their patients. One carer explained that when her husband deteriorated 

and became incontinent it took her around four months to be offered help, she said, “I 

had to go to the GP in tears before anyone would listen to how much I was struggling.”. 

 

Some carers explained how they felt it had become more difficult for them to book an 

appointment for themselves or their loved one, and how the wait had got much longer in 

the past few years. In addition, a number of carers felt that GP appointments were not 

very flexible for carers, and their caring responsibilities were not taken into consideration 

when booking appointments. One carer explained she only got an appointment to fit 

around their caring responsibilities when they asked to talk to the practice manager. 

 

In addition, a number of carers felt that GPs could do much more in terms of signposting 

people to support. It was explained that in the beginning carers can generally cope but as 

time goes by and their loved one deteriorates, this is when carers may begin to struggle 

and feel help is harder to find. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “No one asks how I am feeling” 

- “We knew what was wrong but it took several visits before we were listened to” 

- “They [GP appointments] are not flexible at all” 

- “They never think about other help you may need, they just think about whether 

to write a prescription or not.” 

 

Page 64



 
 
 
 

16 
 

7.9.3 District nurses 

There was generally quite negative feedback around the delays and that some nurses did 

not turn up for appointments. There were also some concerns from carers around the lack 

of thoroughness and continuity. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “… or sometimes not even turning up at all” 

- “They only do the bare minimum” 

- “Nurses will only do what is on their sheet, they will not do anything that may have 

arisen after the visit was booked” 

- “People with long term complex chronic conditions like to see the same person but 

this does not happen very much anymore.” 

 

7.9.4 Social Care 

Several carers explained they have received a lack of help and support from social care 

services, and carers did not always feel listened to. 

 

A group of parent carers felt there was not enough support for people with a learning 

disability and it was felt that once their child reached 25, support was reduced.  

 

One carer explained, “The social worker was very critical of me and I didn’t know why, I 

raised a concern and I now have no contact with them. I feel I have been let down by 

them, I am willing to pay for support but I just want help choosing and arranging it as I 

have never had to do anything like this before and it is hard when you are having to learn 

new things when you are over 75 years old. I do not think social services realise how hard 

it is, I have enough on with keeping myself and my husband going, let alone learning new 

things and arranging care. I am also living with cancer and I think social services could be 

more understanding of this. Yes we have money, but we still need help too.” 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “They just refer you to places and you have to arrange everything yourself, most 

carers do not have the time, energy or expertise to arrange care whether for 

respite or permanent” 

- “They seem to think that when you reach 25 your child no longer needs any help, 

our child will always need help, it is not something they will grow out of” 

- “You seem to get new workers all of the time and then have to repeat everything. 

Why do workers not read out my child’s care file as he has been linked with the 

council for over 30 years, why should I have to repeat everything?” 

7.10   Involvement and consultation 

 

7.10.1 Carers feeling involved 

 

Page 65



 
 
 
 

17 
 

A high proportion of carers felt they had very little interaction and involvement with 

health and care professionals and explained how they felt their views and opinions were 

not considered or valued. This was particularly the case for carers of people with a long 

term condition or mental health.  

 

Three carers spoke about when their loved ones medication was changed and how this 

affected them, they all explained they had tried to raise concerns but they were not 

listened to. As a result two of these people ended up hospitalised whilst their medication 

was changed.   

 

It was believed that carers are not always encouraged by professionals to be involved due 

to confidentiality and data protection.  

 

However, on the other hand, carers of people living with dementia felt very involved 

within their loved ones care. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “Carers should have a chance to meet with mental health professionals on their 

own about their loved ones, as they know how thing have been really happening” 

- “Why didn’t they listen to us? I raised this lots of times and they just ignored me … 

I felt helpless, because of this my husband ended up going back into hospital. What 

a waste of resources” 

- “Professionals need to really listen to carers as they spend most of their time with 

the cared for person so they will have a lot to contribute about how the person has 

been, or if the treatment or medication is working” 

- “It feels like luck if you get someone who wants your input” 

- “My husband cannot express himself, so I have to speak for him at appointments. I 

have been told by professionals that they do not want to hear it from me. I feel as 

if I am wasting my time as they do not listen to me” 

- “My wife had dementia, I felt I was always involved right from the beginning, I felt 

an equal partner and maybe more than because my wife did not really understand 

what was happening to her” 

- “I have always been allowed into appointments and have been involved in 

discussions as my mother does not remember or understand what is happening.” 

 

7.11  Carers breaks 

 

7.11.1 Time for carers 

There were mixed definitions of what a ‘break’ is. Some carers explained a break was 

going away for a few days, and for others it was just a few minutes to themselves. It was 

felt the key to a break would be to ‘forget about caring’. However, many carers explained 

this would be almost impossible.  

 

Sample of comments: 

Page 66



 
 
 
 

18 
 

 

- “I would just like to be able to have a chat on the phone without interruption, that 

would be a break” 

- “I would like a regular break to get myself together and maybe have a coffee with 

a friend” 

- “I would like to be able to have a walk in the fresh air” 

- “Just a day to myself would be wonderful, but I know that will never happen” 

- “There is not a lot I would want to do away from my wife, I just wish we could do 

more things together like we used to.” 

 

7.11.2 Difficulties in having a break 

There were a number of reasons as to why carers did not always have a break, or they did 

not have as many breaks as they would like. It was explained, that as a carer it is very 

difficult to ‘admit you need a break’ as some feel it could mean they are not coping. Two 

carers explained they had to reach crisis point before they asked for a break. However, 

some carers explained that being a carer really does impact on their own health and 

wellbeing, and it is important for carers to have some space for self- care. 

 

Affordability and the cost of respite care also appeared to be a barrier for many carers 

having a break. In addition, a number of carers explained the stress of finding the right 

place or suitable care for their loved one. One carer explained, they were unsure whether 

their loved one would require support in a care home, or nursing home. They felt it had 

been assumed that carers know the difference. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “Having a break is very important, especially when you are caring for someone with 

dementia because you cannot always have a conversation or laugh like you used to 

do as they are no longer the person you met or married” 

- “I work longer hours than most people who work, and so I need a holiday too but it 

can never happen as I get a pittance for looking after my husband and saving the 

government so much money” 

- “You have to fight to get respite care and even then the decision is based only on 

what the person on the phone translates it as, or from the paperwork, so most 

people are just turned down.” 

7.12 Carers rights 

 

A large proportion of carers were unaware of their rights, with many asking, “What are 

our rights?” Many carers explained they would not know how to find out about their rights, 

or have the time to be searching.  

 

Some carers explained they are unable to fill in the required forms which acts as a barrier 

and therefore more support should be provided to carers to ensure they are able to 

complete the required documentation. In addition, a number of claims have to be 

Page 67



 
 
 
 

19 
 

completed online in which also acts as a barrier especially for older carers who have never 

used a computer or accessed the internet.  

 

One carer explained she had contacted South Derbyshire District Council with regards to 

council tax reductions, and the worker said, “If people do not ask about a reduction, then 

we do not tell people.” Carers felt that staff should be trained to provide consistent and 

correct information about reductions for carers and eligibility.  

 

Carers felt they got ‘a raw deal’ from authorities, and many felt that in order to get what 

they need and are entitled to, they had to be assertive. 

 

Sample of comments: 

 

- “Carers would like clearer, simpler information about their rights and not having to 

constantly chase and fight for them” 

- “They (the forms) are long and complicated and I can hardly see them” 

- “It is hard to keep your head straight to get things sorted, so a lot of the time you 

do not bother and try to manage without” 

- “I am not that type of person, so I struggled for six years and it was only when my 

husband got a chest infection that someone eventually did a home visit that they 

realised what I had been doing and coping with, that I started to get help. If that 

had not happened, I do not know where I would be now” 

- “It [council tax reduction] is not advertised enough, it is an entitlement and we 

should not have to ask and beg for it” 

- “We have to prove everything from our side, we should not have to do this as we 

are spending time caring for people and saving the government money” 

- “Most of the stress comes from fighting for, and chasing what you are entitled to, 

we do not need this on top of losing our husbands right in from of us day by day.” 

 

8.0 What should happen now? 

 

1. Consider the option for carers to have face to face assessments and to ensure 

carers are signposted to support/relevant services following their assessment 

2. Ensure that the worker/professional undertaking the carers assessments has good 

knowledge and understanding around caring for someone with mental health, 

learning disabilities, end of life etc 

3. To ensure carers receive the correct level of support to effectively care for their 

loved one and also look after their own health and well-being 

4. To have more information about what carers are entitled to (i.e. carers rights), this 

should be in an easy to understand format 

5. Raise awareness of the ‘Carers in Derbyshire’ website and ensure there is plenty of 

information about local services and support for carers 

6. Work to create a ‘one stop shop’ for advice and signposting 

7. Ensure information around carers breaks and respite is readily available 

8. Promote local support groups and the benefits of peer support 

Page 68



 
 
 
 

20 
 

9. Look to develop services/groups for carers and the cared for, that run side by side 

one another 

10. Ensure that carers are always involved (where possible) in the care and treatment 

of the cared for.  

 

 

9.0 Response from service provider/commissioner  

 

Derbyshire Carers Association (DCA): DCA welcome this report from Healthwatch, it 

confirms many of the issues we raise awareness of on an ongoing basis. We have written 

this response based on figures from our service which we hope will address the highlighted 

issues and show our commitment to continually improve the service that we provide. 

 

 What should happen 

now? 

Response: 

1. Consider the option for 

carers to have face to face 

assessments and to ensure 

carers are signposted to 

support/relevant services 

following their assessment 

 

At DCA we recognise that some carers would prefer 

to have a carer’s assessment completed face-to-

face as opposed to via telephone. 

 

The DCA aims to complete assessments in the most 

appropriate way for individual carers so that they 

can feel comfortable and valued. For this reason 

we offer options for home visits, office visits, 

outside visits at mutually agreed venues and 

telephone assessments.  

 

There is extremely high demand placed on the 

service. Last year we completed 2185 assessments. 

The vast number of assessments are done face to 

face and we offer choice in this matter.  Whilst 

ensuring the assessment is both meaningful and 

effective. 

2. Ensure that the 

worker/professional 

undertaking the carer’s 

assessments has good 

knowledge and 

understanding around caring 

for someone with mental 

health, learning disabilities, 

end of life etc. 

 

At DCA we ensure that all of our assessment 

workers are extremely knowledgeable. Firstly, we 

actively advertise for staff who have prior 

experience in social care. All new assessment staff 

receive a thorough induction and a graduated 

period of shadowing of experienced staff. They are 

also supervised by experienced Team Leaders who 

will identify any gaps in working knowledge and 

ensure these are addressed by peer-mentoring and 

attendance at external courses run by Derbyshire 

County Council. 

 

Page 69



 
 
 
 

21 
 

Our triage team thoroughly understand the 

competencies of team members and can allocate 

assessments to the most appropriate worker for 

each unique situation. Senior management also 

regularly quality check assessments to ensure the 

content is comprehensive and accurate. 

 

The Think Carer team have transferred to DCA with 

their wealth of knowledge. We also have other 

members of staff who are mental health trained 

via health and social care with ongoing mandatory 

training continually available. Experience of staff is 

broad, coming from careers in nursing / care; 

hospice care; supporting people with life limited 

conditions and end of life; A range of social work 

backgrounds; occupational therapy and 

physiotherapy and SW management working with a 

broad spectrum of health conditions and 

disabilities. We have staff specifically trained in 

various disciplines to support the needs of carers. 

Possibly more importantly, there is a high ratio of 

staff who are themselves informal carers, with 

empathy and understanding of carers needs. 

Staff retention at DCA is high, with the same staff 

working with carers for many years. 

3. To ensure carers receive the 

correct level of support to 

effectively care for their 

loved one and also look after 

their own health and well-

being 

Alongside carer’s assessments, DCA aim to provide 

a range of training opportunities for carers, 

including first-aid and manual handling courses.  

Last year we offered 15 training opportunities and 

176 carers learned valuable skills in manual 

handing and first aid. We also regularly offer 

respite activities throughout Derbyshire, striving to 

reach as many communities as possible. We offered 

28 activities variable numbers from 6 at pamper 

session to 35  carers on a trip,  attended these in 

the previous year. All of these opportunities are 

advertised through our three-monthly newsletter, 

groups, carer support teams and website. 

Additionally, DCA commenced a service in May 

introduced a telephone befriending service. This 

allows isolated carers the chance to talk to a 

volunteer once a week, providing a much needed 

opportunity for social contact. At present there are 

4 volunteers speaking to 9 carers, with further5 

volunteers being trained with 6 more carers 

awaiting allocation.   We will continue to develop 

Page 70



 
 
 
 

22 
 

and offer these opportunities in the foreseeable 

future additional lottery funding has been awarded 

which will fund the additional growth. It is 

important to note that there are legitimately 

estimated 130,000-200,000 carers in Derbyshire, 

some of whom may not be aware that they are 

carers, so it is extremely challenging to ensure that 

all carers know what support is available. 

Nevertheless, we will continue to ensure that we 

are supporting as many carers as possible. The DCA 

Young Carers service provides the opportunity for 

carers to transition to adult services, having 

support 24/7. The young carer’s service is in year 2 

and increasing carer awareness within education 

and health settings. Sharing the message of talking 

together to reduce the stigma some young carers 

feel and offering opportunities to reduce caring 

responsibilities.  

Carer support staff with a cohort of 35 carers share 

their experiences to year 3 nursing students at 

Derby University aiding their understanding of 

carers and their experience and knowledge  

We attend all living well clinics to meet with carers 

at the earliest point after diagnosis of dementia to 

offer information and advice about the range of 

support services available for carers to improve 

their caring journey, we have attended 30 living 

well groups these vary attendance per session of 4 

– 12 carers.   

We also send out evaluation forms after every 

assessment and low-level intervention. These 

forms invite carers to give us feedback on how we 

can improve the services which we provide. 

4. To have more information 

about what carers are 

entitled to (i.e. carers 

rights), this should be in an 

easy to understand format 

 

DCA aim to provide information on carer 

entitlements in a range of formats. Our website 

provides information on entitlements such as 

benefits, carer assessments, personal budgets and 

respite. This information is also available if carers 

have queries and wish to call DCA or visit our 

offices instead. In addition to this we are 

encouraging GP surgeries to sign up to the Carer’s 

Pledge. This asks surgeries to ensure there is 

accessible, quality information (provided by DCA) 

available to carers. So far 45 surgeries have signed 

up to the pledge. 

Page 71



 
 
 
 

23 
 

We are currently reviewing the pledge and will be 

working with the CCG to gain greater support to 

get practices to sign up.  

5. Raise awareness of the 

‘Carers in Derbyshire’ 

website and ensure there is 

plenty of information about 

local services and support 

for carers 

 

We should thank DCC for their commitment to 

carers throughout Derbyshire evidenced by the 

resource they have made available  

It is vital this continues because of the contribution 

made by them to the health and social care 

system. This is not the case across the country and 

were it not so it would have a negative impact on 

health and social care. 

DCA actively promote the Carers in Derbyshire 

website. In fact, one of our board members, a 

carer himself had initial involvement in the design 

of the website. The team use this website with 

carers to view up to date information.  It’s one of 

many sources of valuable information for carers. 

We are aware from speaking to Carers that many 

do not access the internet or would choose to.  

6. Work to create a ‘one stop 
shop’ for advice and 

signposting 
 

DCA aims to provide a single point of access for 

advice and signposting for Carers in Derbyshire. 

Derbyshire County Council have commissioned DCA 

as the lead provider of carer assessments and 

support services in the county. Adult Social Care, 

GPs and other voluntary organisations regularly 

refer carers to DCA for support. To this end, Adult 

Social Care have installed a liaison worker within 

the DCA office to ensure effective sharing of 

information and a smooth referral process. This 

way carers can easily be referred when they are 

identified during assessments of the cared-for. The 

health liaison team are also currently increasing 

our outreach to hospitals and GP surgeries. In the 

previous year we signposted carers on to relevant 

services, and provided information, advice and 

guidance  

Carers services are provided by many agencies both 

statutory and voluntary sector as well as private 

agencies.  We would aim to liaise with all partner 

organisations to achieve best outcomes for Carers. 

7. Ensure information around 
carers breaks and respite is 
readily available 
 

DCA sends a newsletter 4 times per year outlining 

upcoming respite opportunities. This information is 

also made available on the DCA website and shared 

by all the staff team when they are working with 

carers.  We will continue to consider new ways of 

raising awareness of the activities on offer. We 

Page 72



 
 
 
 

24 
 

have profiled carers in the last year with a royal 

visit to the DCA from Princess Anne. We’ve also 

taken opportunities for radio interviews and press 

releases. 

8. Promote local support 
groups and the benefits of 

peer support 
 

DCA understand the value of peer support groups 

and we believe they are a fantastic way for carers 

to support one another and socialise. We currently 

support 16 peer support groups with 150 - 200 

carers attending monthly in total. On the DCA 

website and in our newsletters a full list of details 

including contact details for each support group is 

available. We can also provide this information 

over the phone and in person at our offices and 

during events. We are developing new support 

groups in areas where previously none existed, 

constantly looking for new opportunities to 

increase these across the Derbyshire footprint 

9. Look to develop 

services/groups for carers 
and the cared for, that run 
side by side one another 
 

It is important to note that the objective of the 

DCA is to provide support and respite opportunities 

for carers specifically. The aim of respite being 

that carers can take time away from their caring 

responsibilities. We understand however, that 

carers may want to take part in activities alongside 

their cared-for and we will consider the 

practicalities of such a service. We are keen to 

reduce perceived barriers and enable carers to 

access as much as possible whilst also getting the 

right venue and levels of support in place to ensure 

a safe environment and enjoyable activity 

contusive to everyone’s needs. 

10. Ensure that carers are 
always involved (where 
possible) in the care and 

treatment of the cared for.  
 

This is key factor in all we do and a priority 

element in the carer’s assessment and support 

plan. It’s essential that carers have a voice and the 

value of that is critical in coproducing any 

documentations. The carers are the experts in 

their own caring role. DCA can signpost carers to 

formal advocacy services, so that their voices can 

be heard when important decisions are being 

made. 

The team linked with Derby university ae using 

various mixed method approaches to evaluate and 

review the carers over the next 2 years , a carers 

reference panel will be consulted to maximise 

involvement in planning and shaping  future carer 

services 

Page 73



 
 
 
 

25 
 

“This report has highlighted many important issues 

for carers, many of which DCA have been 

advocating for over 30 years at the local and 

national level. To supplement this report and 

provide additional insight, DCA in collaboration 

with the University of Derby is soon to begin 

conducting its own evidence-based evaluation of 

the value of impact of carers’ services. This will 

look not only at the services provided by DCA, but 

also by other statutory and voluntary organisations. 

This evaluation will allow service providers to 

determine how to make best use of their limited 

resources to continue to meet the needs of carers 

in the future.” 

 

 

Derbyshire County Council (DCC): Derbyshire County Council welcomes the findings of 
the Healthwatch Carers Engagement Report. The content builds on what we have 
learned from carers through previous engagement and provides us with addit ional 
narrative which expands on the results of the 2018 Survey of Adult Carers in England 
(SACE). The findings will be used to inform the refresh of the Carers Strategy in 2019 
and Derbyshire County Council are committed to working with key partners as part of 
Joined up Care Derbyshire to develop and improve support for carers through the 
strategy and multi-agency action planning. 
 

Recommendation (What should 

happen now?) 

Response 

1. Consider the option for carers to 
have face to face assessments and to 
ensure carers are signposted to 
support/relevant services following 
their assessment 
 

Carers already have the option of a face to face 
assessment or review. 
 
Due to the increase in the number of carers 
referred for a carer assessment/review and the 
volume of carers awaiting a carer assessment, 
the commissioned carers service from 
Derbyshire Carers Association (DCA) is required 
to adopt a proportionate approach to 
assessment as laid out in the Care Act 2014 
Statutory Guidance. The guidance recognises 
that assessments may, ‘where appropriate’ be 
carried out over the phone, in writing or online. 
 
DCC are aware nevertheless, that telephone 
assessments are unpopular with many carers and 
are working on ways to maximise capacity 
within the service whilst meeting the preferred 
methods of intervention. 
 
All carers are routinely signposted to relevant 
services and support as part of the support plan 

Page 74



 
 
 
 

26 
 

process following assessment. Access to good 
quality information, advice and signposting are 
crucial to carers and this is at the forefront of 
the Council's approach. 
 
Carer support can take many forms and does not 
automatically translate into funded services or a 
carer personal budget, rather this is one aspect 
of a range of support planning options. The Care 
Act 2014 introduced a national eligibility 
criteria for carers and this is used to determine 
support planning outcomes and in some 
situations, the provision of formal care and 
support to the person relying on care and 
support will meet the carer’s eligible needs. 
 
Action 
 
DCC will work to ensure that carers are given 
clear options as to the method of assessment, to 
ensure assessment and review is carried out in a 
meaningful, personalised manner. 
 
DCC will continue to identify ways in which the 
commissioned service can meet the needs of an 
increasing number of carers and adopt a 
proportionate approach, without compromising 
practice and the offer of meaningful, effective 
support. 
 
DCC will examine how information can be 
improved to ensure carers are clear of their 
rights and the support that is available. 

2. Ensure that the 
worker/professional undertaking the 
carer’s assessments has good 
knowledge and understanding around 
caring for someone with mental 
health, learning disabilities, end of 
life etc. 
 

Workers from both DCA and DCC are routinely 
provided with training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills to support a range of 
carers.  
 
DCA have been working in close partnership with 
Derbyshire Hospices and Helen’s Trust, in order 
to provide appropriate and timely support to 
carers who are supporting those at the end of 
life. 
 
DCC acknowledge that the support offer for 
mental health carers could be strengthened. 
Development work with mental health carers 
and partners is a priority for the commissioned 
service in 2019.  
 
Action: 
 

Page 75



 
 
 
 

27 
 

DCC will continue to ensure that all services 
provided or commissioned by the Council are 
responsive to a range of carers needs 
specifically any in relation to the needs of the 
person cared for., i.e. mental health, learning 
disability end of life. 
 
DCC and DCA will work alongside carers to 
identify how the service can be more accessible 
and responsive for mental health carers and how 
the mechanisms for feedback can be developed 
and refined. 

3. To ensure carers receive the 
correct level of support to effectively 
care for their loved one and also look 
after their own health and well-
being.  
 
 

The day to day reality of carer’s lives mean that 
they regularly cross the boundaries of the health 
and social care system. It is recognised through 
the Carers Action Plan 2018-2020 and the NHS 
Long Term Plan, that it is essential that all 
carers are recognised and supported by public 
services and that raising awareness and best 
practice across the system is crucial to ensuring 
carers receive the correct level of support to 
care for their loved ones.  
 
DCC are committed to ensure that all carers in 
Derbyshire have access to the support, advice 
and information to best meet their needs and it 
is hoped that these national policy 
commitments will strengthen the local priorities 
in this respect. 
 
Adult Social Care and Health (ASCH) have also 
deployed a community care worker within the 
DCA carers centre, who acts as a conduit 
between DCC and DCA to ensure effective 
sharing of necessary information and facilitate 
coordinated, joined up responses to those 
families who also receive support through the 
Council and ASCH. 
Action: 
 
Improving the awareness and identification of 
carers will be one of the priorities within the 
refresh of the Carers Strategy and action 
planning will consider how best practice can be 
improved across the system through JUCD to 
ensure that all services respond proactively to 
support carers. 
 
DCC are also considering how to work with 
partners beyond health, social care and local 
government to raise awareness of caring among 
the wider population to build carer friendly 

Page 76



 
 
 
 

28 
 

communities and this will be one of the 
priorities of the revised Carer Strategy.  
 
The impact of caring on a carer’s health and 
wellbeing is well documented and the 
commissioned carer’s service will continue to 
strengthen partnerships to provide practical 
routes to wellbeing, increase carer resilience 
and promote the benefits of ‘self-care’ 
solutions. 

4. To have more information about 
what carers are entitled to (i.e. 
carers rights), this should be in an 
easy to understand format.  

Promoting carers rights is an ongoing area of 
development and importance across the system. 
 
Action: 
 
DCC will work closely with carers to ensure that 
information explaining their rights and 
entitlements is provided in an understandable 
format and to explore new ways in which these 
can effectively be communicated to them. 
 
The refresh of the carer’s strategy will enable 
DCC to work with a range of partners to 
consider how carer’s rights can be promoted 
and upheld throughout the health and social 
care system. 
 
The Carers in Derbyshire website and other 
carer publications which have been developed 
by DCC, will be reviewed to ensure there is 
clear, helpful information provided about carers 
rights.  
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-
rights  

5. Raise awareness of the ‘Carers in 
Derbyshire’ website and ensure there 
is plenty of information about local 
services and support for carers 

It is disappointing that many carers were not 
aware of the Carers in Derbyshire Carers in 
Derbyshire website Facebook Twitter and  
newsletter as these have been co-produced with 
carers and viewed as one of our recent 
successes in supporting carers based on the 
feedback we have received directly from carers 
and professionals. 
 
Action: 
 
DCC will request that a link to the Carers in 
Derbyshire portal is on all partner websites 
across the health and care system. Promotional 
merchandise has been developed and this will 
continue to be distributed widely.  
 
Carers are now routinely invited to sign up to 
the e-newsletter as part of their carer 

Page 77

https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-rights
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-rights
http://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/
http://www.facebook.com/carersinderbyshire
http://www.twitter.com/carersinderbys
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-newsletter-may-2019


 
 
 
 

29 
 

assessment and it is hoped that this will help to 
promote and share the website, Facebook and 
twitter throughout carer communities. 

6. Work to create a ‘one stop shop’ 
for advice and signposting. 

DCC recognise that obtaining the right 
information at the right time is a high-ranking 
and ongoing priority for all carers and a vital 
area of investment in effectively supporting 
carers.  
 
DCC have therefore commissioned a single point 
of access to provide information advice and 
guidance as part of the carers contract with 
DCA,  so it is unfortunate that some carers are 
either not aware of this service or do not 
perceive this service to be a ‘one stop shop’ 
where they can find the information they need. 
 
 
Action: 
 
DCC will work with carers and DCA to consider 
how we can raise the profile of this vital service 
and ensure that carers use the service in order 
to obtain the information they need, when they 
need it.  

7. Ensure information around carers 
breaks and respite is readily 
available. 

DCC recognise that a break from caring is 
another high-ranking and ongoing priority for all 
carers and a vital area of investment in 
effectively supporting carers. It is widely 
understood how difficult it can be for some 
carers to accept their need for a break and this 
is often for a variety of complex reasons. 
 
DCC have commissioned a service from DCA 
which provides different opportunities for carers 
to take a break and provide information about 
accessing respite for loved ones. DCA issue 
almost 2000 carer personal budgets per year to 
enable carers to take a break from caring. DCC 
also provide breaks and respite for carers 
through the provision of support for the cared 
for person in line with the statutory duties 
outlined in the Care Act 2014.  
 
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-
respite-service  
 
Action: 
 
DCC will continue to work with carers, Council 
staff and DCA to ensure that carers have the 
right information and opportunities to access a 
break from caring.  

Page 78

https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-respite-service
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-respite-service


 
 
 
 

30 
 

 
DCC is exploring new ways to provide breaks for 
carers, through technology, innovation and 
increasing the recognition of carers in local 
communities and the wider society.  
 
DCC will work with commercial partners and 
organisations who can offer free or discounted 
breaks to carers and continue to promote 
Timeswap as a support option for carers.  

8. Promote local support groups and 
the benefits of peer support.  

DCC recognise that peer support is a further 
high-ranking priority for many carers and a vital 
area of investment in effectively supporting 
carers, accepting that this can be difficult for 
some carers to access on a regular basis.  
 
DCC is committed to expand the diversity and 
range of peer support opportunities for carers 
across the county.  This is a requirement of the 
commissioned service provided by Derbyshire 
Carers   
 
Action: 
 
DCC will carry out further engagement with 
carers to understand what peer support means 
to carers and consider how some of the barriers 
to accessing peer support can be removed for 
working carers, isolated carers and those who 
cannot easily leave the person depending on 
them.  
 
DCA have been exploring new ways to provide 
peer support for isolated and rural carers 
through the provision of phone-based peer 
support and the development of new support 
groups in partnership with pan-Derbyshire 
organisations. 
 
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-
directory  
 

9. Look to develop services/groups 
for carers and the cared for, that run 
side by side one another. 

DCC understand that some carers feel there is 
an assumption that they want to have a break 
away from the person who depends on them and 
as a result, there are limited peer support 
opportunities which also offer support to the 
cared for adult. We know it is important for 
many carers, to share the opportunity to get out 
with their loved one and many have increased 
peace of mind knowing the person they care for 
is close at hand.  
 

Page 79

https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-directory
https://www.carersinderbyshire.org.uk/carers-directory


 
 
 
 

31 
 

Action: 
 
DCC and DCA will continue to explore how they 
can strengthen partnership working with other 
services and organisations. For example, 
Dementia Support Service; Parkinson’s Society, 
in order to increase capacity and be able to 
provide support to the cared for person whilst 
keeping the focus on supporting the carer. 

10. Ensure that carers are always 
involved (where possible) in the care 
and treatment of the cared for. 

DCC recognise that carers are crucially 
important to how we plan and deliver health 
and social care in Derbyshire and how their 
collective contribution is not only vital in 
sustaining and improving the health and 
wellbeing of those they care for, but also 
strengthens the health and social care system 
across Derbyshire.  
 
DCC understand the importance to carers of 
feeling valued, respected and involved in the 
care and treatment of their loved ones.  
 
Action: 
 
Improving the recognition and respect of carers 
will be included as one of the priorities within 
the refresh of the Carers Strategy.  Associated 
Action Plans will consider how best practice can 
be improved across the system through JUCD to 
ensure that carers feel they are listened to and 
their views are appropriately taken into 
account. 

 

 

10.0 Your feedback 
 
Healthwatch Derbyshire is keen to find out how useful this report has been to you, and/or 
your organisation, in further developing your service.  Please provide feedback as below, 
or via email. 
 
1) I/we found this report to be:     Useful / Not Useful 
 
2) Why do you think this? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
3) Since reading this report: 
 

Page 80



 
 
 
 

32 
 

a) We have already made the following changes: …………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 
b) We will be making the following changes: ……………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 
Your name:    ……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Organisation:  ……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Email:   ……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Tel No:   ……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 

Please email to: helen@healthwatchderbyshire.co.uk or post to: Freepost HEALTHWATCH 

DERBYSHIRE 
 
 

Page 81

mailto:helen@healthwatchderbyshire.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Public Questions (30 minutes maximum in total)
	5 Public Health Update - Oral Health of 5 Year Olds
	6 Public Health Update - Improving Healthy Life Expectancy
	7 Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Review
	8 Derbyshire Healthwatch Carers Report
	10 Minutes

